3. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The court below erred in failing to find that the tangible personal property in question 

remained in the stream of interstate commerce at all times it was passing through West Virginia 

and was not subject to assessment for ad valorem personal property tax purposes. The court 

should review this issue because the assessment of movable tangible personal property 

incidentally present in West Virginia on the assessment day only escapes being arbitrary and 

capricious if the taxing authorities recognize that tangible personal property remains in the 

stream of interstate commerce in spite of stops of various durations in West Virginia. The Court 

should provide guidance to the respondent, assessors and taxpayers as to how long movable 

tangible personal property must remain in West Virginia to gain tax situs here. 

2. The court below erred in failing to find that the tangible personal property in question 

was exempt from West Virginia ad valorem taxation by application of the Freeport amendment 

to the West Virginia Constitution. West Virginia Constitution, Article X, §IC. The Court should 

review this issue because the Freeport amendment has been a part of the West Virginia 

Constitution since 1985 and the Court has only recently, in Feroleto Steel Co. V Oughton, 230 

W. Va. 5, 736 SE 2nd 5 (2012), examined the Freeport amendment for the first and only time. 

3. The court below erred in failing to effectively construe the Freeport amendment 

liberally in favor of the taxpayer seeking the exemption, in violation of the specific mandate of 

the West Virginia legislature as expressed in West Virginia code §11-5-13a and recognized by 

this court in Feroleto Steel Co. V Oughton, 230 W. Va. 5, 736 SE 2nd 5 (2012). The Court should 
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review this issue because the petitioner believes that the respondent consistently reviews 

applications for exemption from ad valorem taxation without liberally construing the Freeport 

amendment in favor of the taxpayer seeking exemption. 

4. The court below erred in failing to find that the proper standard ofproof for an 

application for exemption from ad valorem taxes pursuant to the Freeport exemption is a 

preponderance of the evidence standard. The Court should review this issue because neither the 

Freeport amendment itself nor its enacting statutes defines the proper standard of proof. The 

standard ofproofof clear and convincing evidence, which this Court has adopted for application 

in other types ofproperty tax appeals is inappropriate for the issue of exemption pursuant to the 

application of the Freeport amendment because the legislature has mandated that the Freeport 

amendment be liberally construed in favor ofthe taxpayer and that construction is inconsistent 

with the adoption ofan elevated standard ofproof. 

5. The court below erred in failing to find that the term ''warehouse'' as used in the 

Freeport amendment should be liberally construed to include any facility in which tangible 

personal property subject to Freeport exclusion is housed while in West Virginia. The Court 

should review this issue because the West Virginia legislature has not defined the term 

"warehouse" in the Freeport amendment itself or in its enacting statutes. This has encouraged the 

respondent and other property tax administrators to strictly construe the term "warehouse" and 

apply the exemption only in cases involving storage facilities that have no other function. This is 
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in violation ofthe mandate ofthe legislature in West Virginia code § 11-5-13a to liberally 

construe the amendment in favor ofthe taxpayer. 

6. The court below erred in failing to find that the ternl "consigned" as used in the 

Freeport amendment should be liberally construed to apply to tangible personal property both 

owned by the taxpayer as well as tangible personal property owned by others and held by the 

taxpayer. The Court should review this issue because the West Virginia legislature has not 

defined the term "consigned" in the Freeport amendment itself or in its enacting statutes. This 

has encouraged the respondent and other property tax administrators to strictly construe the term 

"consigned" and apply the exemption only in cases involving tangible personal property owned 

by persons other than the taxpayer. This is inconsistent with traditional definitions of the term 

"consigned" and violates the mandate of the Legislature in West Virginia Code §11-5-13a to 

liberally construe the amendment in favor the taxpayer. 

7. The court below erred in failing to recognize and find that the tangible personal 

property which is the subject of the instant appeal, possesses unique characteristics that 

differentiate it from run ofmine hardware. The court below failed to recognize that the 

components in question are specifically designed for the sole purpose of incorporation into a 

specific jet engine repaired or overhauled in its'Bridgeport, West Virginia facility, have no other 

practical application other than as components for a specific j et engine repaired or overhauled in 

Bridgeport West Virginia, bear and retain a discrete part number both before and following the 

assembly of the component onto the jet engine, and have a replacement schedule mandated by 
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the Federal Aviation Administration, which establishes a specific date by which each component 

must be replaced. The Court should review this issue because the respondent below suggested, 

and the court below appears to have agreed, that the esoteric aerospace components here at issue 

are legally comparable to the assembly of automobiles or automobile tires installed on out-of

state motor vehicles. 

8. The court below erred in finding the legislative intent of the framers of the Freeport 

amendment. The Court should review this issue because there exists no legally recognized 

legislative history to the framing or ratification of the Freeport amendment. Further, the Court 

should review this issue because the plain language of the Freeport amendment, liberally 

construed, speaks for itself and should be recognized as doing so by this Court. 

9. The court below erred in finding that the assembly of the subject component parts onto 

jet engines being repaired or overhauled at the Bridgeport facility resulted in a new or different 

product, article, substance or commodity from the component itself. The Court should review 

this issue because factually each component assembled in the repair or overhaul of a jet engine in 

Bridgeport retains its identity not only throughout the assembly process in Bridgeport but 

throughout the component's and the engine's useful life. A turbine blade that is assembled onto a 

jet engine possesses a discrete and unique part number. No other turbine blade may be used in 

the repair or overhaul ofjet engine lest that jet engine would fail to be certified for flight. That 

turbine blade, regardless of its condition, will be replaced on a date in the future mandated by the 

Federal Aviation Administration regardless of the condition of that turbine blade at that time. 
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The focus of the Freeport amendment must always be on what happens to the tangible personal 

property that is held in West Virginia with the intention of it being exported from the state at 

some point. The focus is the turbine blade, not the jet engine itself. The turbine blade is and 

always will be a turbine blade. 

10. The court below erred in finding that the activities involving the subject components 

that take place in Bridgeport result in a product, article, substance or commodity of different 

utility. The Court should review this issue because neither the framers of the amendment nor the 

legislature in the passage of the enacting statutes defined what "a product... of different utility 

is." In the case of the components at taxpayer's Bridgeport facility, none of the components had 

any utility other than for the purpose which they were ultimately used, to be assembled onto jet 

engine in the course of its repair or overhaul. Nothing that took place in Bridgeport changed the 

utility of those components. 
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4. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


This appeal commenced with a request made by the petitioner to the assessor ofHarrison 

County, West Virginia to exempt certain items oftangible personal property from ad valorem 

taxation pursuant to the application of the Freeport amendment to the West Virginia Constitution 

West Virginia Constitution article X, §IC. The assessor ofHarrison County timely responded to 

the petitioner's request and denied the relief requested. App.83 The assessor then submitted the 

issue raised by the petitioner to the respondent, who timely filed a decision denying the 

application ofthe Freeport amendment to the petitioner's tangible personal property. App. 151 

A timely appeal was taken by the petitioner to the Circuit Court of Harrison County, West 

Virginia.. There, a hearing was held, which included a view of petitioner's facilities in 

Bridgeport, Harrison County, West Virginia as well as the taking of testimony. By order entered 

on the 30th day ofAugust, 2016, the Circuit Court of Harrison County sustained the decision of 

the respondent in denying the application of the Freeport amendment to the tangible personal 

property of petitioner. App. 1 

Please see the Summary of Argument below for a statement of the facts of the case that 

are relevant to the assignments oferror. 
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5. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Petitioner builds, overhauls and repairs Pratt & Whitney jet engines at its facility in 

Bridgeport, Harrison County, West Virginia. App. 39 In 2015, the taxpayer timely applied for 

the exemption of certain tangible personal property from ad valorem taxation under the 

provisions of the commerce clause to the United States Constitution and the West Virginia 

Freeport amendment, W V Const Article X, §lc and its enacting statutes West Virginia code 

§11-5-13 and West Virginia code §11-5-13a. App. 83 The personal property at issue are engine 

components, owned by the petitioner and used in the overhaul and repair of the jet engines 

serviced in Bridgeport. App.43-49 

These components are manufactured outside the state of West Virginia App.50, stored in 

the Bridgeport facility for, on average 0 to 3 months App.47, after which they are assembled 

onto jet engines being repaired or overhauled. App. 51 Over 99% ofthe jet engines repaired or 

overhauled are then shipped to destinations outside the state. App. 51 The components remain in 

the stream of interstate commerce during their brief paths in West Virginia and do not gain tax 

situs for purposes of the ad valorem property tax. 

These engine components are manufactured exclusively for assembly into Pratt and 

Whitney jet engines. App. 52 No generic substitute for these components can be used in the 

overhaul and repair of Pratt & Whitney engines App. 56 and that these components have no 

practical alternative use other than as components assembled to overhaul and repair Pratt & 

Whitney jet engines. App. 52 None of the components for which Freeport exemption is sought 

could change their character in the course of being assembled at Bridgeport, become a new or 

different product while in the Pratt & Whitney facility or become a product with a different 
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utility. App. 53-54 From conception to assembly to operation to obsolescence, these items of 

tangible personal property are components of a jet engine and do not or cannot perform any other 

function. 

As a result of the respondent's refusal to exempt the components for the repair 

and overhaul ofjet engines in Bridgeport from ad valorem taxation, the petitioner was over 

appraised in the amount of$7,438,639 App.58, and over assessed in the amount of 

$4,463,183.40 for its 2015 ad valorem taxes. 
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6. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Oral argument is necessary pursuant to the criteria in Rule 18 (a) of the West Virginia 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. The case should be set for a Rule 20 oral argument for the reasons 

that this case involves issues of first impression involving the application of the Freeport 

amendment to technologically sophisticated manufacturing operations. The case is of 

fundamental public importance for the reason that the petitioner believes that the Freeport 

amendment is not applied by the respondent in a manner consistent with its own terms or that of 

the enabling statutes passed by the West Virginia legislature. This case involves a fundamental 

constitutional question regarding the meaning and scope ofthe Freeport amendment, which this 

court has not fully addressed. 

More importantly, a Rule 20 oral argument is necessary because the respondent has 

demonstrated that he and his predecessors have consistently and historically misunderstood and 

misapplied the Freeport amendment. In response to the application of the petitioner, the 

respondent stated: 

The Freeport Amendment was never intended to exempt the ordinary inventories of 
tangible personal property kept on hand for such purposes. (Emphasis added) App. 
158 

How does he know that? Certainly not from an objective reading of the plain language of 

the Freeport amendment. 
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Additionally, the uncontroverted evidence introduced at the hearing in this matter 

demonstrated that the tangible personal property at issue in this appeal is anything but "ordinary 

inventories. " 

The petitioner believes that the minimum time for argument set forth in Rule 20 will be 

sufficient to fully present the case. 

7. STANDARD OF PROOF 

At best, the standard ofproof in this appeal is preponderance of the evidence. In the only 

appeal by this court involving the Freeport amendment, the issue of the standard ofproof 

applicable to the exemption of tangible personal property pursuant to the Freeport amendment 

was presented to the court. The court specifically refused to address the issue.1 In doing so, the 

court demonstrated good scholarship. Section a of West Virginia code §11-5-13a provides: 

This section is intended to clarify the intent of the Legislature and the citizens in 
establishing the exemption from ad valorem property taxation granted by section one-c, 
article ten of the West Virginia constitution and section thirteen of this article as it 
pertains to goods held in warehouse facilities in this state awaiting shipment to a 
destination outside this state. This section codifies policies applied by agencies and 
departments of this state upon which persons have relied. It is the intent of the 
Legislature that the provisions of this section are to be liberally construed in favor of a 
person claiming exemption from tax pursuant to section one-c, article ten of the West 
Virginia constitution, this section and section thirteen of this article. (Emphasis added) 

1 The respondents asserted that the petitioner has the burden of proving that its inventory of steel coils is exempt from ad 
valorem property taxation by clear and convincing evidence, citing In re Tax Assessment ofWoodlands. 223 W.Va. 14,672 
S.E.2d 150 (2008), and State ex rei. Prosecuting Attorney v. Bayer Corp .• 223 W.Va 146,672 S.E.2d 282 (2008). This Court has 
never determined the standard by which a taxpayer must prove entitlement to an exemption from ad valorem property taxation 
under W. Va. Const. art. X, § Ic, and W. Va Code § 11-5-13, and we do not find it necessary to do so in order to decide the 

instant appeal. Feroleto Steel Co. v. Oughton, 230 W. Va. 5, 7, 736 S.E.2d 5, 7 (2012) 
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In Feroleto, the court recognized the requirement to provide a liberal construction in 

favor of the person claiming exemption under the Freeport amendment. The court was quite clear 

regarding its recognition of this obligation. 

Finally, this Court finds the exemption of the inventory of steel coils from ad valorem 
property taxation consistent with the intent in establishing the exemption. According to 
w. Va. Code § 11-5-13a(a) (1997), in part, "[i]t is the intent of the Legislature that the 
provisions of this section are to be liberally construed in favor of a person claiming 
exemption from tax pursuant to section one-c, article ten of the West Virginia 
Constitution, this section and section thirteen of this article." Accordingly, this Court 
now holds that pursuant to W. Va. Code § 11-5-13a(a), it is the intent of the 
Legislature that the exemption from ad valorem taxation of certain personal property of 
inventory and warehouse goods provided for in W. Va. Const. Art. X, § lc; W. Va. 
Code § 11-5-13; and W. Va. Code § 11-5-13a(b); is to be liberally construed in favor 
of a person claiming the exemption. In sum, this Court finds that the exemption of the 
petitioner's inventory of steel coils is more consistent with the applicable constitutional 
and statutory language as well as the intent in the establishment of the exemption. 
Feroleto Steel Co. v. Oughton, 230 W. Va. 5, 9, 736 S.E.2d 5, 9 (2012) 

A mandated liberal construction of the Freeport amendment together with its enacting 

statutes in favor of the person claiming exemption is logically inconsistent with the imposition of 

an elevated standard of proof on that same person to prove that it is entitled to the exemption 

provided by Freeport. If anything, given the mandate for liberal construction in favor of the 

taxpayer, the burden ofproof should be on the party resisting the application of the Freeport 

amendment. If the burden of proof falls on the party seeking exemption, then nothing more than 

a preponderance standard of proof may be required. 
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8. ARGUMENT 

OVERVIEW OF FREEPORT AMENDMENT 

The Freeport amendment2 may be viewed as containing two means of exempting tangible 

personal property. The first is a modestly expanded restatement of federal constitutional law that 

goods moving in interstate commerce do not acquire situs for ad valorem tax purposes. The first 

provision can be read as follows: 

Tangible personal property which is moving in interstate commerce through or over the 

territory of the State of West Virginia ... shall not have acquired a tax situs in West Virginia for 

purposes of ad valorem taxation and shall be exempt from such taxation, except as otherwise 

provided in this section. 

2 § lc. Exemption from ad valorem taxation of certain personal property of inventory and 
warehouse goods, with phase in to full exemption over five-year period 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Constitution, tangible personal property which is 
moving in interstate commerce through or over the territory of the State of West Virginia, or 
which was consigned from a point of origin outside the State to a warehouse, public or private, 
within the State for storage in transit to a final destination outside the State, whether specified 
when transportation begins or afterward, but in any case specified timely for exempt status 
determination purposes, shall not be deemed to have acquired a tax situs in West Virginia for 
purposes of ad valorem taxation and shall be exempt from such taxation, except as otherwise 
provided in this section. Such property shall not be deprived of such exemption because while in 
the warehouse the personal property is assembled, bound, joined, processed, disassembled, 
divided, cut, broken in bulk, relabeled, or repackaged for delivery out of state, unless such 
activity results in a new or different product, article, substance or commodity, or one of different 
utility. Personal property of inventories of natural resources shall not be exempt from ad valorem 
taxation unless required by paramount federal law. 
The exemption allowed by the preceding paragraph shall be phased in over a period of five 
consecutive assessment years, at the rate of one fifth of the assessed value of the property per 
assessment year, beginning the first day of July, one thousand nine hundred eighty-seven. 
W. Va. Const. art. X, § Ic 
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This first provision merely recites an exemption that has historically been applied to 

goods moving in interstate commerce and only modestly broadens the exemption beyond what is 

provided for through the United States Constitution. In his taxability ruling in this matter, the 

Tax Commissioner stated: 

The Freeport amendment does not exempt from ad valorem taxation goods which are 
already exempt due to their interstate movement. The exemption already exists via 
the commerce clause in the United States Constitution. To the extent the goods are 
exempt under the commerce clause, similar protection under the Freeport 
amendment is repetitive. However, what the Freeport amendment does, in addition to 
reinforcing that protection, is to define for purposes of ad valorem taxation West 
Virginia the goods which qualify for exemption under that amendment and when 
applicable interstate commerce commences. Property Tax Ruling 16-38; Joint 
Exhibit Number One 

The second provision of the Freeport amendment does provide an exemption for tangible 

personal property that might otherwise gain situs for ad valorem tax purposes. The second 

provision may be read as follows:

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