BEFORE THE WEST VIRGINIA SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS 


APPEAL NO. 16-0903 


PRATT & WIDTNEY ENGINE SERVICES, INC., 

Petitioner below, Petitioner, 

v. 

DALE W. STEAGER,i 
STATE TAX COMMISSIONER 
OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

Respondent below, Respondent. 

BRIEF OF THE 
WEST VIRGINIA STATE TAX DEPARTMENT

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

. . 

tax even though hexagonal bolts and shirt buttons have a multiplicity of uses for different 

customers. By the same token, once Feroleto Steel cut the steel coils at issue to the precise 

specifications of its customer, the steel coils were only usable by that particular customer. See 

Feroleto Steel at 6, 6. The key issue in Feroleto Steel was whether the activities that occurred in 

the warehouse at the Feroieto Steel plant re'sulted in a ne~ or different product or a produ~t with 

a different utility. (See discussion below in Subsection B.) The mere fact that Compressor 

Number 1234 can only be used torepair a Pr~tt & Whitney Engine, Model No. ABeD, has no 

bearing on whether the compressor is exempt from tax. What matters is the result of the activity 

of Pratt & Whitney installing Compressor 1234 to repair a malfunctioning jet engine, Pratt & 

Whitney Engine Model No. ABCD, owned by a customer. By installing the compressor into the 

engi~e, the actions of Pratt & Whitney result in a different product A malfunctio~ing jet engine 

is now a fully functionaljet engine which can be installed on an airplane. As Mr. Tucker 
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testified, a jet engine is a different product and a product with a different utility than a 

compressor, a counterweight or a grommet. Singularity of use is not found in the language in the 

Freeport Amendment or the enacting legislation. 

Finally, Pratt & Whitney argues that the exacting standards of the aerospace industry 

should be a factor in the Freeport analysis. "Bad things can happen when jet engines stop 

working at 35,000 feet." See Taxpayer's Supreme Court Brief at p. 28. Obviously, the failure of 

a fully functioning jet engine at 35,000 feet could have catastrophic results in terms of loss of 

life. However, the number of lives relying on the installation of a repair part in the jet engine is 

not an issue in Freeport analysis. While the failure of a car door on an automobile assembled in 

West Virginia or the failure of a Firestone tire at 55 miles per hour may not qualify as a 

catastrophe in the same terms as an airplane crash, bad things can still·happen. Whether two 

lives or twenty lives could be lost due to product failure, neither is involved in Freeport Analysis. 

what matters for the tax exemption is whether the actions of Pratt & Whitney--by installing a 

compressor, a counterweight, or a grommet in a jet engine-result in a new or different product 

or a product with a different utility. As Mr. Tucker te·stified, a jet engine is a different product 

and a product with a different utility than compressor, a counterweight, and a grommet. 

B. 	 For Freeport Amendment Analysis, the Critical Element is the Result of the 
Activities That Occur in the Warehouse; Operating a Warehouse Alone Is 
Insufficlent. .. 

The Circuit Court correctly focused on the critical element in a Freeport Amendment 

case. Judge Marks found that the activities of Pratt & Whitney Engine Services in repairing 

malfunctioning jet engines at the Bridgeport facility result in a new or different product or a 

product with adifferent" utility as compared to the repair parts on'the 39 page inventory iist. See 

ARat p. 14~ Conclusions ofLaw 6-10. As noted above, Pratt & Whitney has conceded that the 
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only issue on appeal is whether the activities that occur at the Bridgeport facility result in a new 

or different product or a product with a different utility. See Taxpayer's Supreme Court Brief at 

p. 27, paragraph 2. 

Nevertheless, on appeal Pratt & Whitney has focused on the term "warehouse" rather 

than the activities that occur at the Bridgeport facility. The Taxpayer argues that since the term. 

"warehouse" is not de:qnedby the Freeport Amendment and the enacting legislation, the Tax 

Department and qther property taxing authorities have "... strictly construe [ d] the term 

'warehouse' and appl[ied] the exemption only on cases involving storage facilities that have no 

other function." Assignment of Error 5; see also, Taxpayer's Brief at p. 20-21 6• 

The Taxpayer's argument fails for several reasons. First, simply operating a warehouse

either a public w'a:rehouse or a company operating its own warehouse---does not entitle any 

taxpayer to Claim a prope11y tax exemption under the Freeport Amendment. The taxpayer must 

meet all the requirements set forth in the amendment to the West Virginia Constitution which 

states, in pertinent part: 

Such property shall not be deprived of such exemption because while in the 
warehouse the- personal property is, assembled, bound, joined, processed, 
dIsassembled, divided, cut, broken in bulk, relabeled, or repackaged for delivery 
out of state, u,~less such activity results in a new or different product, article, 
substance or commodity, or one of different utility. ' 

W. Va. Const. Art. 1 0, § 1 c (emphasis added). Pratt & Whitney's argument relies on the first half 

at the quoted language and ignores the second half. Pratt & Whitney argues in its Brief to this 

Court that "[w]hile in the Bridgeport facility, th~ components are assembl~d, b'ound, joined, 

pracess~d, and disassembled." Taxpayer's S~preme Court Brier at p. 27. The evidence before 

the Circuit Court clearly 'demonstrated that Pratt & Whitney will inspect acustomer's jet engine, 

6 However, th~ Taxpayer states on P. 21 of the Supreme Court Brief, "Likewise, the term "warehouse" is not an 
issue in this appeal." 
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determine if any parts need to be replaced, install the necessary parts or components, test the 

engine, and return the jet engine to the customer for use on an airplane. See, Testimony of Mr. 

Tucker at AR 59,1. 23 - AR 61, l. 12 (installation of any ~eeded part during repairs). 

However, Pratt & Whitney ignores the second half of the requirement. What is the result 

of Pratt & Whitney's activities of installing new components on a jet engine? A jet engine that 

did .. not op~rate. ac.cording to the exacting standarqs of the aerospace industry now operates 

properly and ~an be useci for its intended purpose; Mr. Tucker'-s testimony was clear. A jet 

engine is a different product than a counterweight, a grommet, a compressor and the various 

parts on the inventory list. See Findings 15, 17 & 18, supra. Similarly, the jet engine has a 

different utility than a grommet or any other repair part. See, e.g., Findings 14 & 16. The 
. .. 

activity of installing the repair parts results in an operational jet engine which is different than 

the sum ofall the parts on the inventory list. See Finding 18, supra. Argued below at AR 208

209: 

In this case, Pratt & Whitney has simply failed to read the Freeport Amendment to the 

Constitution in its entirety. The operative provision in the Freeport Amendment is the result of 

the activities of installing the property at the warehouse. The ·legislative rules for ad valorem 

property tax provide the foundation for the Tax Department's iong-held position. 

3.6.2. The exemption shall be allowed if the property, while in the warehouse, is 
assembled, bound, joined, processed, disassembled, divided, cut, broken in bulk, 
relabeled, or repackaged for out-of-state delivery so long as the activity does not 
result in a new or different article, product, .substance or commodity, or one 
of different utility. .. 

W. Va. Code· St. R. :§ 110-3-3.6.2 (1989) (eniphasis added). What matters in Freeport 

Amendment analysis is the result of the activity that occurs while in the warehouse. As argued 

below, a grommet or a counterweight always remains a grommet or a counterweight; however, 
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the activity of installing grommets and counterweights in a nonfunctioning jet engine results in a 

new or different product than a grommet or a cOlmterweight - the fully functioning jet engine 

which can be used for flying an airplane. 

Pratt & Whitney relies on the case of Feroleto Steel, cited supra, which presented a very 

different set of facts. The Supreme Court fmind that Feroleto Steel purchased steel coils, cut 

steel coils to the specifications set by its customers, and shipped steel coils out of state to its five 

customers. The Court stated, "Put simply, the steel coils arrive at the petitioner's warehouse as 

wide steel coils and they leave the warehouse as narrower steel coils." Feroleto Steel at 8, 8. On 

the other hand, Pratt & Whitney withdraws counterweights, turbines, fan blades, and grommets 

from its inventory held in storage, installs the individual repair parts as needed, and ships out 

fully operational jet engines. Feroleto Steel stored steel coils, cut steel coils and shipped out 

steel coits not a different product or a product with" a different utility. The activities that occur in 

the warehouse are what matters most in Freeport Amendment analysis. 

The second reason that Pratt & Whitney's argument fails is that the argument is a red 

" " " 

hea,ring. The Circuit Court did not adopt the view attributed to the Tax Department and the other 

property taxing authorities as advocated by Pratt & Whitney. The conclusions of law in the 

Judge Marks'" decision "d~ not limit the applicability of the Freeport Amendment to " ... cases 

involving storage facilities that have no other function ...." a~ suggested in Assignment of Error 

5. The Circuit Court decision should not be reversed on an error that the Circuit Court did not 

make. 

Third, Pratt & \"Vhitney's assignment of error is not the Tax Department's position. 

Property Tax Ruling 15-54 was not based on the premise that only a pur~ warehouse business, a 

business engaged in the storage of property and no other function, could qualify for the Freeport 

19 




Amendment. See AR 151-158. The Tax Department clearly based its argument before the 

Circuit Court on the result of the activities of Pratt & Whitney in repairing jet engines as 

discussed above. 

Fourth, assume arguendo that the Tax Department actually believes the Freeport 

Amendment should only apply to "... cases involving storage facilities that have no other 

function ...." as suggested in Assignment of Error 5 by the Taxpayer. The issue was recently 

resolved by this Court in Feroleto Steel, cited supra, at 6, 6. Feroleto Steel was engaged in more 

than storing steel coils; the taxpayer cut the steel coils it had stored as specified by its customers. 

The matter has been settled by this Court. A taxpayer need not be engaged exclusively in the 

warehouse business and performing no other business activities in order to meet the requirements 

o'f the Freeport Amendment. However, as noted above, the Circuit Court dId not' adopt the 

limitation as argued by the Taxpayer in Assignment of Error 5. 

Therefore, the Assignment of Error 5 fails for numerous reasons. 

C. 	 The Case Revolves Around the Language of the' Freeport Amendment To the 
West Virginia Constitution and Not the Commerce, Clause. 

Pratt & Whitner devotes a considerable, portion of its. argument before the Supreme Court 

to discussing the evolu,tion of commerce clause jurisprudence prior to the US Supreme Court 

decision in Complete Auto Transit, Inc., v. Brady, 430 US 274 (1977) and the first prong of the 

Freeport Amendment., See Assignment of Error 1; see also Taxpayer's Supreme Court B:rief at 

pp.21.,.26. The case before the Court revolves around the language of the FreeportAme~dment 

to the West Virginia Constitution, the undisputed facts of the site walk, the test,imony of Mr. 

Tucker at the, bench ~al, and npt the commerce clause.7 The first prong of the Freeport 

7 At the Circuit Court, Pratt & Whitney admitted that the only issue before the Court was whether the activities that 
occur in Bridgeport resulted in ~ new or different product or a product with a different utility. See AR250. The Tax 
Department addressed the Taxpayer's commerce cl,ause argul1lent to the extent necessary in PTR 15-54 and at the 
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Amendment simply states, " ... tangible personal property which is moving through or over the 

territory" of the State of West Virginia ... " is exempt from ad valorem property tax. See W. Va. 

Const. Art. 10, § Ie. Contrary to Pratt & Whitney's assertions, the inventory of repair parts is 

not moving in interstate commerce through or over the" territory of the State if West Virginia 

because the result of the activities at the Bridgeport facility is a new and different product and a 

product with a different utility. 

Pratt & W4itney's argument" that the inventory of repair parts is simply travelling 

through West Virginia in interstate commerce enroute for delivery out-of-state is nonsense. See 

Taxpayer's Supreme Court Brief at pp. 24-25. The inventory's final destination is Harrison 

County, WV, because that is where Pratt & Whitney uses the inventory of spare-parts in its jet 

engine repair business. At the bench trial, Mr. Tucker described Pratt &" Whitney's business as 

~verh~uling jet engln:es, repairing jet engines and building new production engines. Testimony 

at AR 39, lines 7-18. Being able to repair customers' jet engines is the sole reason that Pratt & 

Whitney has an inventory of repair parts. The Taxpayer's entire facility in Bridgeport is 

dedicated to the repair of jet engines for its customers. Without the specialized inventory 

necessary to repair malfunctioning jet engines, Pratt & Whitney's repair facility would simply be 

out of business. Mr. Tucker's testimony was extremely clear; FAA certified parts are the only 

parts that can be legally used to repair jet engines. Pratt & "Whitney cannot accept or use 

~ub~titute parts." See Testimony ofMt. Tucker at AR 56, lines 6-13. If Pratt & Whitney Jacks a 

specific part necessary to repair a jet engine, then Pratt & Whitney cannot finish the job the 

customer needs completed-the repair of a malfunctioning jet engine. As the Tax Departnient 

Circuit Court since it was not an issue before the Court. On appeal to the Supreme Court, the Taxpayer listed the 
commerce clause argument as its first assignment of error. The Tax Department will rebut the argument regarding 
the evolution of the commerce clause jurisprudence more fully since it is specifically an assignment of error and in 
order to avoid waiver of the argument under Rule lO(d) of the WV Rules ofAppellate Procedure. 
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argued in PTR 15-54, the repair parts are not merely passing through West Virginia in interstate 

commerce for delivery out-of-state; the repair parts are expressly destined for use in Pratt & 

Whitney's jet engine repair business in Bridgeport. Argued below at AR 157-158; AR 214. 

Since West Virginia is the final destination for the inventory of repair parts, the repair parts are 

not moving through or over the territory of the State of West Virginia in interstate commerce. 

The case before the. Court is not a commerce clause case regardless of Pratt & Whitney's 

attempts to· characterize it as such. The Taxpayer has admitted that the seminal case regarding 

the commerce clause is Complete Auto. Assuming arguendo that the case should be analyzed 

under the commerce clause, Property Tax Ruling 15-54 passes the test set forth in Complete Auto 

v. Brady. The Complete Auto decision is significant since it outlined the four-prong test which 

cUrrently serves as the fOUIidation for commerce clause analysis. See Taxpayer's Supreme Court 

B·def at pp. 23-24. Under Complete Auto a tax may be imposed on interstate commerce as long 

as the tax passes the four factor test: 

1. Whether the activity has sufficient nexus to the taxing state; 
2. Whether the tax is fairly related to benefits provided to the taxpayer; 
3. Whether the tax discriminates against interstate commerce; 
4. Whether the tax is fairly apportioned. 

Complete Auto at 287; see also Syl. Pt. 2, Tax Commissioner of the State of.West Virginia v. 

MBNA America Bank, N.A., 220 W.Va. 163,640 S.E.2d 266 (2012). 

The Tax. Department ea~ily passes the four factor test. First, the Harrison County 

Assessor only taxed the personal property stored and located in Bridgeport, West Virginia, on the 

assessment date of July 1,2014. Pratt & Whitney specified exactly what personal property was 

locateq in HfllTison County on tbe assessment date. Prop.erty physically p~esent in.West Virginia 

has a sufficient nexus for ad valorem property tax purposes. See also W. Va. Code §§ 11-3-1 

and 11-5-1. Second, county property taxes assessed by the Harrison County Assessor are used to 
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provide essential county services including police and fire protection and for providing public 

schools. It cannot be disputed that providing police and fire protection as well as an educated 

workforce, provides significant benefits to Pratt & Whitney's business operations. Third, Pratt & 
, , 

Whitney has made no showing that Harrison County ad valorem property taxes are assessed in a 
~ 

discriminatory manner against property moving in interstate commerce. The Taxpayer has not 

argued that Assessor Romano is taxing Pratt & Whitney's property at a higher rate while taxing 

other taxpayers' property at a lower rate. The record is devoid of any evidence that Pratt & 

Whitney must pay the ad valorem property tax while, other Harrison County taxpayers can obtain

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